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Description of works.

An archaeological watching brief was maintained by Exeter Archaeology during the digging of foundations for two 
semi-detached cottages. 

The development site is situated off of Fore Street itself, on a side lane running to The Old Dairy, the village 
surgery and the community centre. A prefabricated bungalow dated to the 1920s was demolished in advance of 
the new dwellings. The site sits within a medieval burgage plot aligned on Fore Street in the core of the historic 
village.

It was clear that the ground level, when compared to adjacent areas, had previously been reduced by around 
0.25m for the construction of the prefabricated bungalow, which sat on a concrete raft. Prior to EA’s arrival, the site 
had been cleared of hardstanding and overburden, exposing natural subsoil over significant areas of the site. 

The foundation trenches for the two new dwellings were excavated using a tracked mini-digger with a 0.6m 
toothed bucket to a depth of 0.9m below present ground surface (about 1.15m below the surface of the adjacent 
pathway). An extensive deposit of reddish brown sandy clay, containing occasional fragments of slate, stone and 
post-medieval pottery was exposed beneath the footprint of the bungalow. This material varied in depth between 
0.1m and 0.3m and probably represents introduced material (predominantly redeposited natural subsoil) resulting 
from the levelling the site of the bungalow prior to formation of the concrete slab. This material directly overlay in-
situ natural subsoil, also consisting of reddish-brown sandy clay. Away from the footprint of the bungalow natural 
subsoil was exposed at ground level as a result of the initial site clearance.

The limited finds from the made ground include a single sherd of North Devon scraffito pottery (1660-1700), two 
sherds of South Somerset coarseware pottery (17th to 18th century), two of German Westerwald pottery (late 17th

to early 18th century), several fragments of clay smoking-pipe (1800-1830), numerous transfer-printed ‘blue and 
white’ ceramic sherds (late 18th to 19th century onwards) and a fragment of post-medieval floor tile. The finds 
represent debris and refuse spread across the rear of the burgage plots throughout the post-medieval period.

No features, deposits or artefacts of archaeological significance were observed.

A plan as well as any other relevant drawings must be attached showing the location and extent of site, 
areas investigated and features exposed.
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